
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Tuesday, 7th December, 2021 
     at 10.00 am (Banqueting Hall) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 30th September, 2021. 
 
 

5 - 12 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876314. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from Members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received 
from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan  
  

13 - 22 

(R) 9.   Appointment of External Auditors  
  

23 - 40 

(R) 10.   Code of Conduct and Guidance Revision  
  

41 - 90 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Membership of Committee 
Councillors 
 
Councillors Burns (Chairman) 

Assouad (Vice-Chair) 
Callister 
Hall 
Nott 
Shirley 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Monday, 29 November 2021 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting: Thursday 30th September, 2021 
at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 

 
PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Callister, Nott and Pemberton. 
 
Officers Present:- Susan Roberts (Director of Resources), Keith Jackson (Head of 
Internal Audit), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), 
Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer) and Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer - Member Support). 
 
Also present was Matt Derrick from Grant Thornton (Minute Nos. 25 - 32 only). 
 
19 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Hall. 
 
Councillor Pemberton had attended as a substitute for Councill Hall for this meeting 
only. 
 
20 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006 

 
Discussion arising hereon it was:- 
 
RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 (Minute No. 32) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 
21 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 18th August, 2021 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
22 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
23 – Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report  
 
The Monitoring Officer presented the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Annual 
Review letter 2020/2021.  The outcomes of the complaints received had been broken 
down into total numbers received, complaints decided to undertake an investigation 
and the number upheld. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
During this reporting period the Local Government Ombudsman had made no 
decisions on cases, in comparison to one decision made in 2019/20, one decision in 
2018/19 and no decisions in 2017/18.  It had been noted that investigations of the 
LGO had been impacted by Covid and during March to June 2020 they had not 
accepted any new complaints and had stopped investigating live cases during the 
same period, which had reduced the number of complaints decided during this 
reporting year. 
 
For 2020/21 one compliance outcome with Ombudsman recommendations had been 
made for the period 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021. The compliance with the 
Ombudsman recommendations rate for this period was reported as 100%. The 
annual review findings were also available on the Local Government Ombudsman 
website. 
 
The one compliance outcome had related to Planning and Development which the 
Ombudsman was satisfied with compliance. 
 
The Council operated a two stage complaints process before matters were referred 
to the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
A copy of the letter and the annual statistics had been attached as appendices to the 
report for information. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 
2020/2021. 
 
24 – Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Work Plan sets out the business of the 
Audit and Governance Committee to provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that 
the terms of reference were covered. 
 
The work plan was presented to each Audit and Governance Committee meeting to 
provide a forward plan of business. 
 
The work plan had been attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Work Plan for 2021-2022. 
 
25 – External Audit Plan  
 
Matt Derrick from Grant Thornton reported that the External Audit Plan for the year 
ended 31st March, 2021 was complete and had been attached as an appendix to the 
report.   
 
RESOLVED:- To note the External Audit Plan for the year ended 31st March, 2021. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 
26 – Review of Standards Arrangements 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that the Council’s Standards Arrangements had been 
reviewed by this Committee and Council in 2021.  Complaints concerning Member 
conduct to date had been considered under the delegated powers of the Monitoring 
Officer, there had been no formal investigations which had necessitated a Member 
Hearing.  The Council’s Standards Arrangements had been attached as an appendix 
to the report. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that it was appropriate for the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements to be reviewed on a regular basis, and the arrangements had been 
considered in light of the Best Practice Recommendations arising from the 
Committee for Standards in Public Life Review of Ethical Standards.  The updated 
action plan against the Best Practice Recommendations had been attached as an 
appendix to the report. 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference had been revised in June 
2020 to take account of Standards Arrangements, this had been attached as an 
appendix to the report.  It had been noted that the terms now included a Hearings 
Sub-Committee to deal with any hearings required under the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements. 
 
Independent Person 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee that Stephen Murray’s appointment 
expired on 1st October, 2021 and that new appointments had been made by the 
Council in February 2021.  The Independent Person was now Peter Kuit, with Steve 
Forster as the Reserve Independent Person.  The Council could also call on the 
assistance of neighbouring Authorities if support was required. 
 
The Code and Guidance 
 
It had been noted that the Member Code of Conduct had been reviewed and the 
revised version had been adopted by Council in September 2020.  The Parish and 
Town Councils had also adopted the same Code.  Following that, in December 2020, 
the LGA Model Code had been finalised. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee that the Cumbrian Monitoring Officers 
had worked together on the LGA Model Code to make appropriate local 
amendments.  These had been attached as an appendix to the report with tracked 
changes to make it easier for Members to see where the suggestions had been 
made.  Whilst Members had revised the Code in September 2020 to take account of 
the Best Practice recommendations, Members were requested to consider the 
Cumbrian template and whether they wished to recommend this to Council. 
 
RESOLVED:- That the review of standards arrangements be received and to agree 
that the Monitoring Officer be requested to bring a report to the next meeting with the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Cumbria revised Member Code of Conduct and guidance, prior to making 
recommendations to Full Council. 
 
27 – Risk Management  
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council’s Risk Register was submitted to 
Management Team on a quarterly basis. 
 
The risks highlighted by the Committee at the previous meeting in respect of Climate 
Change and Local Government Reorganisation had been considered and agreed as 
additions.  It had been noted that Management Team had been happy with the 
scoring and mitigation controls. 
 
The format of the Risk Register enabled a risk score to be assigned if no action was 
implemented, and a mitigated impact which reflected the existing control and 
mitigation – in essence this was a judgment of how much the risk could be managed. 
 
The Risk Management Policy was set by the Executive Committee and included the 
risk matrix used to determine the risk severity. The risk matrix had been set out in a 
table within the report. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note Risk Management report and additional risks. 
 
28 – Restricted Assurance Monitoring 
 
The Director of Resources reported that at the Audit and Governance meeting on 
29th July 2021 the IT Procedures Review audit report had been presented.  The 
report provided an update on the actions flowing from the recommendations. 
 
The audit report concerning IT procedures and documentation had been issued with 
restricted assurance. There had been two major issues and five important issues 
identified. 
 
The Director of Resources had retained the services of an IT Expert/Specialist to 
provide resource and support to the IT Team with projects, strategic advice and to 
close off the procedural/documentation matters. 
 
The overall IT Security Policy would be presented to the Executive Committee in 
December 2021 and the sub-policies would have been reviewed to provide a 
common review point. The report to the Executive Committee would clarify the status 
of the IT policies, protocols and procedures to ensure that delegations were clear. 
 
The IT Strategy would also be presented to the Executive Committee in December 
2021 and that would identity priorities for service delivery, for compliance and for 
resilience.  This was predominately focussed on service based software as the core 
infrastructure had been updated and enhanced through the IT Agile project. 
 
RESOLVED:- To receive the Restricted Assurance Monitoring report. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



29 – Borough and Parish/Town Councillor Registers of Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests and Other Registrable Interests  

 
The Monitoring Officer reported that under the Localism Act 2011, Members were 
required to disclose those disposable pecuniary interests as specified in regulations 
and any other interests which the Council had decided should be registered in the 
interests form.  
 
The Borough Council resolved on 17th July, 2012 to adopt the other registrable 
interests as detailed in the register of interests form, and the Monitoring Officer was 
required to maintain the register and ensure that it was available for inspection, as 
required by the Act, which also included being available on the Council’s website. 
When looking at Councillor’s details on the website there were links to the register of 
interests form, and to those of the Parish/Town Councillors. 
 
The Council held elections every four years and there were two new Members 
following by elections for two vacancies, which had been held on 6th May, 2021.  
Interest forms from the new Members had been received and all Members had been 
requested to confirm that their registers of interests and gifts and hospitality were up 
to date. 
 
Guidance had been provided around the code and declarations and training on the 
code had been provided to Members in February 2021.  
 
In September 2020 due to the uncertainty of whether Members who received 
allowances had a DPI in matters coming before the Council, the Monitoring Officer 
had granted dispensation to all Members of Barrow Borough Council for a period of 
four  years for matters relating to Local Government Reform and Devolution.  
 
RESOLVED:- To note the review of the registers of interests. 
 
30 – Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality  
 
The Monitoring Officer had presented a report to review the register of interests and 
gifts and hospitality for employees for the period September 2020 to September 
2021. 
 
The Officer’s code of conduct for Barrow Borough Council Employees provided 
guidance on interests and gifts and hospitality.  The Council had hospitality guidance 
which provided information as to how employees should treat any offers of gifts and 
hospitality.  
 
There was a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that were declined 
should also be included in any declarations.  
 
The Audit and Governance Committee considered the Council’s compliance with its 
own and other published standards and controls and considered the arrangements 
for corporate governance and agreeing the necessary actions to ensure compliance 
with best practice.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



The Committee had an overview of the Employee Register and now reviewed on an 
annual basis.  
 
Management Group had been asked to confirm that the register of interests was up 
to date.  In the last twelve months, no significant gifts or hospitality had been 
received but those recorded demonstrated that interests were being recorded. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the report. 
 
31 – Internal Audit Final Report  
 
The Head of Internal Audit reported that Internal Audit had performed audits in 
accordance with the approved Annual Plan which was based on a risk assessment of 
the internal control environment.  On completion, the final reports were presented to 
this Committee for consideration. 
 
There had been one final report appended for consideration, as follows: -  
 
Payroll, 21-13 – Substantial Assurance 
 
The report contained one major issues and three important issues.  All 
recommendations had been accepted by management unless otherwise stated. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Final report. 
 
Local Government Act 1972 - Excluded Items 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded by Councillor Nott that the 
meeting moved into Part Two, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the items to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the Public. 
 
32 – Internal Audit Progress Report  
 
The Head of Internal Audit presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 
period 1st April, 2021 to 17th September, 2021. 
 
The report contained a statistical summary of the number of audit recommendations 
made up to 17th September, 2021 (11).    
 
It had been noted that 10 recommendations had been fully accepted and one 
recommendation partly accepted.  Each of the recommendations had been assigned 
a Priority Grade 1-3, 1 being major issues and 3 being minor issues.  Eight had been 
rated Priority 2 and three had been rated Priority 1. 
 
There had been one Priority 1 recommendation since the previous Committee.  
Having considered the recommendation, the Committee had requested the 
Monitoring Officer to ensure that the policy was fit for purpose.  
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- (i)  To note the Internal Audit progress report; and 
 
(ii)  To request the Monitoring Officer to undertake a policy review. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.41 pm. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

7 December 2021 

Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

 

1.1  The Work Plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

1.2 The Work Plan for 2021-2022 is presented for information accompanied by a 

commentary of variations. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Work Plan for 2021-2022. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Work Plan is presented at each Audit and Governance Committee meeting 

to provide a forward plan of business. 

 

3.2 The Work Plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

3.3 The revisions are highlighted in blue within the Work Plan at Appendix 1. 

 

3.4 There are several revisions this time and several of those are driven by the 

annual audit which is ongoing and not yet concluded: 

 

 17. Annual Governance Statement 

 20. Statement of Accounts and Letter of Representation 

 21. Audit Findings Report 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



3.5 The Council relies upon external expertise for certain information which supports 

the figures used in preparing the accounting statements. 

 

3.6 Officers review the expert information to ensure it is consistent with expectations 

and verify calculations are correct where that is possible and practical. 

 

3.7 Not all the evidence has been provided as at the 29 November 2021 and it is 

therefore not possible to complete the annual audit. 

 

3.8 An additional Audit and Governance Committee will be scheduled to receive the 

closure of the annual audit. 

 

3.9 Items 2. and 5. (final reports and progress) from Internal Audit have been 

deferred to the next meeting; this is currently allocated to the additional meeting 

and will be kept under review. 

 

3.10 Item 9. (Auditor appointment) is an item on this agenda. 

 

3.11 Item 15. (risk management) is not on the agenda as there are no changes to 

report. 

 

3.12 Item 18. (restricted assurance) is not on the agenda.  At the Audit and 

Governance Committee of the 30 September 2021 action to address the Priority 

One recommendation was allocated to the Head of Legal and Governance 

(Monitoring Officer).  This will be the subject of a report, added to the Work Plan 

as Item 29. 

 

3.13 The reporting officer has been updated from the Corporate Support Manager 

post is vacant; these are reallocated to the Director of Resources and the Head 

of Legal and Governance. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference 

assigned by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2021-2022 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 07-Dec TBC 17-Mar

1.

To consider the head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report and opinion, and a summary of Internal 
Audit activity (actual and planned) and the 
level of assurance it can give over the 
Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements.

Head of 
Internal Audit Annual report 

2. To consider summaries of specific Internal 
Audit reports.

Head of 
Internal Audit Final reports     

3. To consider the annual Internal Audit plan. Head of 
Internal Audit Annual plan 

4.
To consider reports dealing with the 
management and performance of the Internal 
Audit provider.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

5.
To consider reports from Internal Audit on 
agreed recommendations not implemented 
within reasonable timescale.

Head of 
Internal Audit Progress report     

Annual audit letter  
Certification of grants  

7.  To consider specific reports as agreed with 
the external auditor.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress report and 
sector update

8.
To comment on the scope and depth of 
external audit work and to ensure it gives 
value for money.

Appointed 
Auditor Annual plan  

9.  To consider the appointment of the external 
auditor where appropriate.

Director of 
Resources

Appointed auditor report 
– cyclical 

Changes at 7 December 2021 in blue

Report as required.

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter 
and relevant reports.

Appointed 
Auditor6.

Audit Activity

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 07-Dec TBC 17-Mar

Changes at 7 December 2021 in blue

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

10.
To maintain an overview of the Council’s 
Constitution in respect of contract standing 
order, financial regulations.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

11.

 To promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct for elected and co-opted members in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Localism Act.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Standards arrangements 

12.

 To determine whether a member of the 
Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to comply 
with the relevant Code of Conduct. Where it 
finds that a failure to comply with the code of 
conduct has occurred to determine what 
action, if any, to take.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

13. To determine any request for a dispensation 
under s.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

14.
 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources, Monitoring 
Officer or any Council body.

Various

15.
To monitor the effective development and 
operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council. 

Director of 
Resources Risk management    

Regulatory/Standards Framework

Report as required unless otherwise determined under delegation

Various as required

Report as required

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 07-Dec TBC 17-Mar

Changes at 7 December 2021 in blue

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

Director of 
Resources Annual review (antifraud) 

Complaints and 
compliments report 

Local Government 
Ombudsman letter 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

Final Annual Governance 
Statement (included with 
Statement of Accounts)

 

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Code of corporate 
governance 

Director of 
Resources

Restricted assurance 
monitoring    

Best practice review 

Code of conduct and 
guidance 

18.

To consider the Council’s arrangement for 
corporate governance and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice.

19.
To consider the Council’s compliance with its 
own and other published standards and 
controls.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

16.
To monitor Council policies on the antifraud 
and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s 
complaints process. Head of Legal 

and 
Governance

17.
To approve the production of the authority’s 
Annual Governance Statement and to 
recommend its adoption.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 07-Dec TBC 17-Mar

Changes at 7 December 2021 in blue

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

Going concern 

Accounting policies 

Assurance arrangements 

Statement of Accounts 
and Annual Governance 
Statement

 

Letter of representation  

21.
To consider the external auditor’s report to 
those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts.

Appointed 
Auditor Audit findings report  

22. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
terms of reference.

Director of 
Resources Terms of reference 

23. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
work plan.

Director of 
Resources Work plan    

24. To note the External Audit fees. Director of 
Resources Audit fees 

25. To consider the effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

20.

To review and approve the annual Statement 
of Accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed and whether there are concerns 
arising from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council.

Director of 
Resources

Others

Accounts

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

29-Jul 30-Sep 07-Dec TBC 17-Mar

Changes at 7 December 2021 in blue

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

26. Review of Borough and Parish councillor 
registers of interests

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

27. Review of employee gifts and hospitality
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

28.  Annual report of the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee Various Annual report  

29. Relocation Policy
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Ad hoc report 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

7 December 2021 

Appointment of External Auditors 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council 

for the accounts for the five-year period from 2023-2024. 

 

1.2 Vesting Day for Westmorland and Furness Council is 1 April 2023, and the 

Cumbria Chief Finance Officers will all be recommending to opt into the national 

scheme for auditor appointments managed by Public Sector Audit Appointments 

as the ‘Appointing Person’. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1     The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to recommend that Council:-  

 

(1) Accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the 

sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors to principal 

local government and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 

2023. 

(2) Authorises the Section 151 Officer to sign the Public Sector Audit 

Appointments’ notice of acceptance on behalf of the Council.   

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and 

including the audit of the 2022-2023 accounts. 

 

3.2 Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) is now undertaking a procurement for 

the next appointing period, covering audits for 2023-2024 to 2027-2028.  During 

Autumn 2021 all local government bodies need to make important decisions 

about their external audit arrangements from 2023-2024.  The options are to 

arrange direct procurement and make the appointment or in conjunction with 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



other bodies or join and take advantage of the national collective scheme 

administered by PSAA. 

 

3.3 The report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will 

produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the Council than a 

procurement undertaken locally because: 

 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 

authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

 if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the Council will 

need to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and 

independent members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing 

management of an audit contract; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered 

auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local 

procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of auditor 

resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a 

continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long 

term. 

 

3.4 If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 

arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the 

decision at Full Council.  The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and 

closes on 11 March 2022.  To opt into the national scheme from 2023-2024, the 

Council needs to return completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

The Appointed Auditor  

 

3.5 The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 

statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the Council in each 

financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.   

The appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by 

electors and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports 

and statutory recommendations.   

 

3.6 The auditor must act independently of the council and the main purpose of the 

procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 

qualified and independent.  

 

3.7 The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the 

work.  As the report below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered 

firms and Key Audit Partners.  

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



3.8 Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with 

wider powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the 

course of the next audit contract.  

 

3.9  Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit 

services they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or 

overseen by third parties.   

 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly  

 

3.10 The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which 

would require the Council to;  

 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. 

The auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council itself, and the 

members of the panel must be wholly, or a majority of independent members 

as defined by the Act.  Independent members for this purpose are 

independent appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or 

officers) and their close families and friends.  This means that elected 

members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to 

which audit firm to award a contract for the Council external audit.  

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.   

 

3.11 Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 

establish a joint auditor panel.  Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or 

a majority of independent appointees.  Further legal advice would be required on 

the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each 

Council under the Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local 

authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

 

3.12 PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under 

the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 

2015.  PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing 

period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018-2019 to 2022-2023.  It is now 

undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next 

appointing period, from the 2023-2024 audit onwards, and to complete a 

procurement for audit services.  PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose 

costs are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme 

members.  

 

3.13 In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of 

the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 

formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible 

with other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria 

are satisfied.  PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its 

detailed procurement strategy; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit 

and managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment 

period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 

scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the 

opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these 

reflect scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these 

have been let. 

 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing opinions  

 

3.14 Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last 

awarded in 2017.  At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had 

been few changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing 

over a long period.  98% of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme 

and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms.  The resulting audit 

contracts took effect from 1 April 2018. 

 

3.15 During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led 

to questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. 

Four independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John 

Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; 

the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald 

Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony 

Redmond’s review of local authority financial reporting and external audit.  The 

recommendations are now under consideration by Government, with the clear 

implication that significant reforms will follow.  A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to 

be established, and arrangements for system leadership in local audit are to be 

introduced.  Further change will follow as other recommendations are 

implemented. 

 

3.16 The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 

measurable improvements in audit quality.  This has created a major pressure 

for audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and 

expectations in every audit they undertake.  By the time firms were conducting 

2018-2019 local audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in place to 

respond to a more focused regulator were clearly visible.  To deliver the 

necessary improvements in audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



to undertake additional work to gain deeper levels of assurance.  However, 

additional work requires more time, posing a threat to the firms’ ability to 

complete all their audits by the target date for publication of audited accounts. 

Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of the FRC’s drive to improve 

audit quality.  Additional audit work must also be paid for.  As a result, many 

more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years. 

 

3.17 This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention 

challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and 

increasing levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of 

developing new or enhanced income streams to help fund services for local 

people.  These challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with 

COVID-19 creating further significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

 

3.18 None of these problems is unique to local government audit.  Similar challenges 

have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing 

responses to tender invitations have been experienced during the past two 

years. 

 

The invitation 

 

3.19 PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 

2023-2024 to 2027-2028, along with all other eligible authorities.  Based on the 

level of opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms 

and appoint a suitable firm to be the Council’s auditor.  Details relating to PSAA’s 

invitation are provided in Appendix 1.  

 

The next audit procurement 

 

3.20 The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 

determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies.  PSAA will: 

 

 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 

scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 

accordance with the published fee scale as amended following consultations 

with scheme members and other interested parties (pooling means that 

everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a 

competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective 

scheme); 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as a 

not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 

2019 it returned a total £3.5m to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further £5.6m 

was returned.  

 

3.21 PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement.  Firms will 

be able to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match 

their available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



They will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic 

market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting 

information provided about each audit.  Where regulatory changes are in train 

which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be 

informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids.  

 

3.22 The scope of a local audit is fixed.  It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 

(currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the financial 

statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing 

standards regulated by the FRC.  These factors apply to all local audits 

irrespective of whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national 

scheme or chooses to make its own separate arrangements.  The requirements 

are mandatory; they shape the work auditors undertake and have a bearing on 

the actual fees required. 

 

3.23 There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and 

other relevant bodies under local audit legislation.  This means that a local 

procurement exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national 

procurement exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence 

issues.  Local firms cannot be invited to bid.  Local procurements must deliver 

the same audit scope and requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the 

auditor’s statutory responsibilities. 

 

Assessment of options and officer recommendation  

 

3.24 If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 

auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment.  The auditor panel would need 

to be set up by the Council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly 

or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act.  Independent 

members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and 

former elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends.  This 

means that elected members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and 

choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the Council’s external audit.  

 

3.25 Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 

establish a joint auditor panel.  Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or 

a majority of independent appointees.  Further legal advice would be required on 

the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each 

Council under the Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local 

authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

 

3.26 These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the 

Council, and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would 

be likely to result in a more costly service.  It would also be more difficult to 

manage quality and independence requirements through a local appointment 

process.  The Council is unable to influence the scope of the audit and the 

regulatory regime inhibits the Council’s ability to affect quality.  

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



3.27 The Council and its auditor panel would need to maintain ongoing oversight of 

the contract.  Local contract management cannot, however, influence the scope 

or delivery of an audit. 

 

3.28 The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 

limited administrative cost to the Council.  By joining the scheme, the Council 

would be acting with other authorities to optimise the opportunity to influence the 

market that a national procurement provides.  

 

3.29   The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor 

appointment scheme.   

 

The way forward 

 

3.30 Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires 

that a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting of the Council (meeting as a 

whole), except where the authority is a corporation sole.  

 

3.31 The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 

specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022); included as 

Appendix 2.  

 

3.32 PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022.  It 

expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities 

on the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 

deadline of 31 December 2022.  

 

3.33 Vesting Day for Westmorland and Furness Council is 1 April 2023, and the 

Cumbria Chief Finance Officers will all be recommending to opt into the national 

scheme for auditor appointments managed by Public Sector Audit Appointments 

as the ‘Appointing Person’. 

 

Risk Management  

 

3.34 The principal risks are that the Council: 

 

 fails to appoint an auditor in accordance with the requirements and timing 

specified in local audit legislation; or 

 does not achieve value for money in the appointment process.  

 

3.35 These risks are considered best mitigated by opting into the sector-led approach 

through PSAA. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Audit and Governance Committee is appropriate for consultation. 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative options are contained in the body of the report. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the 

current contracts end.  It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring 

more audit work.  There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in 

the local audit market. 

 

7.2 Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are 

as realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by 

entering into a large scale collective procurement arrangement. 

 

7.3 If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to 

establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement.  Until a procurement 

exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource 

may be required for audit fees from 2023-2024.  

 

Legal  

7.4 Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant 

Council to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not 

later than 31 December in the preceding year.  

 

7.5 Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the Council must 

consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 

appointment of a local auditor.  Section 8 provides that where a relevant Council 

is a local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a 

local auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the 

Council under those arrangements. 

 

7.6 Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor.  The Council 

must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the Council to 

appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of 

the Council.  

 

7.7 Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation 

to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has 

been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) 

and this gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to 

Page 30

Agenda Item 9



become the appointing person.  In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified 

PSAA as the appointing person. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.8 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, there are no direct 
equality implications arising from the report. 

 
Risk 

7.9 The risks are contained in the body of the report.  

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor 
appointments from  April 2023. 

2  Form of notice of acceptance of the invitation to opt in. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 

 

 
22 September 2021 

 
To:       Ms Plum, Chief Executive 
       Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 
 
 
Copied to: Ms Roberts, S151 Officer 

                 Cllr Mrs Burns, Chair of Audit Committee or equivilent 

 

Dear Ms Plum, 

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023 
 

I want to ensure that you are aware the external auditor for the audit of your accounts for 

2023/24 has to be appointed before the end of December 2022. That may seem a long way 

away but, as your organisation has a choice about how to make that appointment, your 

decision-making process needs to begin soon. 

We are pleased that the Secretary of State has confirmed PSAA in the role of the appointing 

person for eligible principal bodies for the period commencing April 2023. Joining PSAA’s 

national scheme for auditor appointments is one of the choices available to your organisation.  

In June 2021 we issued a draft prospectus and invited your views and comments on our early 

thinking on the development of the national scheme for the next period. Feedback from the 

sector has been extremely helpful and has enabled us to refine our proposals which are now 

set out in the scheme prospectus and our procurement strategy. Both documents can be 

downloaded from our website which also contains a range of useful information that you may 

find helpful.  

The national scheme timetable for appointing auditors from 2023/24 means we now need to 

issue a formal invitation to you to opt into these arrangements. In order to meet the 

requirements of the relevant regulations, we also attach a form of acceptance of our invitation 

which you must use if your organisation decides to join the national scheme. We have 

specified the five consecutive financial years beginning 1 April 2023 as the compulsory 

appointing period for the purposes of the regulations which govern the national scheme. 

Given the very challenging local audit market, we believe that eligible bodies will be best 

served by opting to join the scheme and have attached a short summary of why we believe 

that is the best solution both for individual bodies and the sector as a whole. 

I would like to highlight three matters to you: 

1. if you opt to join the national scheme, we need to receive your formal acceptance of this 

invitation by Friday 11 March 2022;  

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/procurement-strategy/


2. the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (e.g. a 

police and crime commissioner), the decision to accept our invitation and to opt in must 

be made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole e.g. Full Council or 

equivalent. We appreciate this will need to be built into your decision-making timetable. 

We have deliberately set a generous timescale for bodies to make opt in decisions (24 

weeks compared to the statutory minimum of 8 weeks) to ensure that all eligible bodies 

have sufficient time to comply with this requirement; and 

3. if you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may 

subsequently make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2023. We are required to 

consider such requests and agree to them unless there are reasonable grounds for their 

refusal. PSAA must consider a request as the appointing person in accordance with the 

Regulations. The Regulations allow us to recover our reasonable costs for making 

arrangements to appoint a local auditor in these circumstances, for example if we need 

to embark on a further procurement or enter into further discussions with our contracted 

firms. 

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us 

by email at ap2@psaa.co.uk. We also publish answers to frequently asked questions on our 

website. 

If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email also to 

ap2@psaa.co.uk, and we will respond to you.  

 

Yours sincerely 

Tony Crawley 

Chief Executive 

 

Encl: Summary of the national scheme 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk


 

 

Why accepting the national scheme opt-in invitation is the best solution 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) 

We are a not-for-profit, independent company limited by guarantee incorporated by the Local 

Government Association in August 2014.  

We have the support of the LGA, which in 2014 worked to secure the option for principal local 

government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national 

body.  

We have the support of Government; MHCLG’s Spring statement confirmed our appointment 

because of our “strong technical expertise and the proactive work they have done to help to 

identify improvements that can be made to the process”. 

We are an active member of the new Local Audit Liaison Committee, chaired by MHCLG and 

attended by key local audit stakeholders, enabling us to feed in body and audit perspectives 

to decisions about changes to the local audit framework, and the need to address timeliness 

through actions across the system. 

We conduct research to raise awareness of local audit issues, and work with MHCLG and 

other stakeholders to enable changes arising from Sir Tony Redmond’s review, such as more 

flexible fee setting and a timelier basis to set scale fees.  

We have established an advisory panel, which meets three times per year. Its membership is 

drawn from relevant representative groups of local government and police bodies, to act as a 

sounding board for our scheme and to enable us to hear your views on the design and 

operation of the scheme.  

The national scheme for appointing local auditors 

In July 2016, the Secretary of State specified PSAA as an appointing person for principal local 

government and police bodies for audits from 2018/19, under the provisions of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. Acting 

in accordance with this role PSAA is responsible for appointing an auditor and setting scales 

of fees for relevant principal authorities that have chosen to opt into its national scheme. 98% 

of eligible bodies made the choice to opt-in for the five-year period commencing in April 2018. 

We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in bodies for each of the five financial years beginning 

from 1 April 2023.  

We aim for all opted-in bodies to receive an audit service of the required quality at a realistic 

market price and to support the drive towards a long term competitive and more sustainable 

market for local audit. The focus of our quality assessment will include resourcing capacity 

and capability including sector knowledge, and client relationship management and 

communication. 

What the appointing person scheme from 2023 will offer 

We believe that a sector-led, collaborative, national scheme stands out as the best option for 

all eligible bodies, offering the best value for money and assuring the independence of the 

auditor appointment.  

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

The national scheme from 2023 will build on the range of benefits already available for 

members: 

• transparent and independent auditor appointment via a third party; 

• the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor;  

• appointment, if possible, of the same auditors to bodies involved in significant 

collaboration/joint working initiatives, if the parties believe that it will enhance efficiency;  

• on-going management of any independence issues which may arise; 

• access to a specialist PSAA team with significant experience of working within the context 

of the relevant regulations to appoint auditors, managing contracts with audit firms, and 

setting and determining audit fees;   

• a value for money offer based on minimising PSAA costs and distribution of any surpluses 

to scheme members - in 2019 we returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and more 

recently we announced a further distribution of £5.6m in August 2021; 

• collective efficiency savings for the sector through undertaking one major procurement as 

opposed to a multiplicity of smaller procurements;  

• avoids the necessity for local bodies to establish an auditor panel and undertake an auditor 

procurement, enabling time and resources to be deployed on other pressing priorities;  

• updates from PSAA to Section 151 officers and Audit Committee Chairs on a range of 

local audit related matters to inform and support effective auditor-audited body 

relationships; and 

• concerted efforts to work with other stakeholders to develop a more sustainable local audit 

market. 

We are committed to keep developing our scheme, taking into account feedback from scheme 

members, suppliers and other stakeholders, and learning from the collective post-2018 

experience. This work is ongoing, and we have taken a number of initiatives to improve the 

operation of the scheme for the benefit of all parties.  

Importantly we have listened to your feedback to our recent consultation, and our response is 

reflected in the scheme prospectus. 

 

Opting in 

The closing date for opting in is 11 March 2022. We have allowed more than the minimum 

eight-week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible 

bodies is a decision made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole [Full Council 

or equivalent], except police and crime commissioners who are able to make their own 

decision.  

We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of eligible bodies that opt in will be 

published on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to 

request information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment, 

and any potential independence matters which may need to be taken into consideration when 

appointing your auditor. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

We are aware that reorganisations in the local government areas of Cumbria, Somerset, and 

North Yorkshire were announced in July 2021. Subject to parliamentary approval shadow 

elections will take place in May 2022 for the new Councils to become established from 1 April 

2023. Newly established local government bodies have the right to opt into PSAA’s scheme 

under Regulation 10 of the Appointing Person Regulations 2015. These Regulations also set 

out that a local government body that ceases to exist is automatically removed from the 

scheme. 

If for any reason there is any uncertainty that reorganisations will take place or meet the 

current timetable, we would suggest that the current eligible bodies confirm their acceptance 

to opt in to avoid the requirement to have to make local arrangements should the 

reorganisation be delayed. 

Next Steps 

We expect to formally commence the procurement of audit services in early February 2022. 

At that time our procurement documentation will be available for opted-in bodies to view 

through our e-tendering platform. 

Our recent webinars to support our consultation proved to be popular, and we will be running 

a series of webinars covering specific areas of our work and our progress to prepare for the 

second appointing period. Details can be found on our website and in the scheme prospectus.

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/autumn-and-winter-webinars/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/prospectus-2023-and-beyond/


This page is intentionally left blank



Appointing Period 2023/24 to 2027/28 
Form of notice of acceptance of the invitation to opt in 

(Please use the details and text below to submit to PSAA your body’s formal notice of 

acceptance of the invitation to opt into the appointing person arrangements from 2023) 

 

 
Email to: ap2@psaa.co.uk 
 
 

Subject: Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

 Notice of acceptance of the invitation to become an opted-in authority 

 
This email is notice of the acceptance of your invitation dated 22 September 2021 to become 

an opted-in authority for the audit years 2023/2024 to 2027/2028 for the purposes of the 

appointment of our auditor under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and the requirements of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 

 

I confirm that Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council has made the decision to accept your 

invitation to become an opted-in authority in accordance with the decision making 

requirements of the Regulations, and that I am authorised to sign this notice of acceptance 

on behalf of the authority. 

 

Name: [insert name of signatory] 

Title: [insert role of signatory] (authorised officer) 

For and on behalf of: Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

Date: [insert date completed] 

 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

mailto:ap2@psaa.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

7 December 2021 

Code of Conduct, and Guidance Revision 
 

   

Report from:   Monitoring Officer 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    Not applicable 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  That the Audit and Governance Committee considers the Code of Conduct as 

reviewed through Cumbria Monitoring Officers, together with revisions to the 

guidance for recommendation to Council. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

 

(1) It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee considers 

recommending to Council that it adopts the LGA Code of Conduct (as 

amended); and 

 

(2) That subject to the revised code being adopted that the Guidance be 

revised as set out in the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 At its last meeting Audit and Governance Committee considered a review of its 

standards arrangements and received an update with regard to the model LGA 

Code of Conduct which had been considered by the Cumbria Monitoring Officers 

Group and had requested that a report be brought back to this meeting with the 

amended version of the code and revised guidance for final consideration ahead 

of recommendation to full Council. 

 

3.2 As Members are aware best practice recommendations from the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life set out a number of recommendations, many of which 

require changes to legislation and so are the responsibility of central government 

to implement, however a number were for local authorities to implement, and the 

report on 30 September 2021 provided an update in terms of the Council’s 

implementation of those recommendations. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



3.3 One of the recommendations was that the Local Government Association 

(“LGA”) should create an updated Model Code of Conduct.  When the 

Committee considered the Council’s code back in 2020 the LGA were still 

working on this and the LGA Model Code was published in December 2020.  The 

Cumbria Monitoring Officers have worked together on the Model Code to make 

appropriate amendments (the Model Code is promoted as a template to be 

amended for local circumstances). 

 

3.4 The Model Code of Conduct with suggested amendments is shown as Appendix 

1 of the Report.  The amendments are shown via tracked changes to make it 

easier for Members to see where the suggestions have been made to the LGA 

Model Code of Conduct. 

 

3.5 Hopefully the changes are self explanatory but providing some additional detail: 

 

3.6 Paragraph 7.2 deals with the use of Council resources for political purposes. At 

the moment the position is clear, Members may not use Council resources to 

promote any particular political party.  The Cumbria Monitoring Officers are of the 

opinion that the suggested wording in the LGA Model Code would introduce 

ambiguity where non currently exists, hence the suggested amendment. 

 

3.7 Paragraph 10.2 covers the value of gifts/hospitality to be recorded.  Members 

have previously discussed this.  The current level in this Council’s Code is £50, 

Members may wish to revisit or reaffirm the amount. 

 

3.8 In matters where Members disclose a disclosable pecuniary interests, the 

amendment to the proposed code continues the current arrangement whereby if 

the public has the right to speak then so does the Member.  The Member, having 

spoken must then leave the room/meeting.  This ensures that Members do not 

have fewer rights than they would do as ordinary members of the public. 

 

3.9 In relation to other declarations of interests (non-pecuniary) the LGA Code 

requires the Member to leave the room/meeting.  However, this goes further than 

the law requires and is unnecessary; not participating when it would be 

inappropriate to do so is the more important point. 

 

3.10 In paragraph 9 on page 13 of the Code, the LGA attempts to revert to the pre 

2012 Statutory Code of Conduct.  The test as to whether a Member’s financial 

position is affected “to a greater extent that it affects the financial interests of the 

majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision” is too imprecise a 

test to apply.  The suggested local amendment of whether an ordinary member 

of the public would believe the Member’s judgement be affected is a far clearer, 

objective judgement and should be easier to apply and use. 

 

3.11 Since the LGA Code was published a revised version was issued in July 2021 

and the tweaks are incorporated into this version.  Members are asked to confirm 

whether they wish to see unpaid directorships added to the other registrable 

interests which the Council has said should be declared.  If Members agree that 

Page 42

Agenda Item 10



these should be included this will be incorporated into the recommendations for 

full Council. 

 

3.12 The Guidance for Members has also been revised to take account of the new 

Code and this is attached as Appendix 2. 

 

 Recommendations 

 

3.13 Members are requested to consider the LGA Model Code as amended by the 

Cumbrian Monitoring Officers, and accompanying guidance and recommend the 

Code to full Council for adoption. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 All Borough councillors and Parish/Town Clerks have been sent a copy of the 

revised draft on 11 October 2021 and invited to submit any comments to the 

Committee. The Independent Person has also been consulted. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The report is to consider and comment. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Ethical standards underpin the governance controls of the Council. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no finance or resource implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  Any changes to 

standards arrangements must be in accordance with the relevant legislative 

requirements. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – there are no issues to 
raise. 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

That the Council is failing in its 

standards arrangements 

Poor standards of 

behaviour – reputational  

Monitor and review 

arrangements on a 

regular basis 

 

Contact Officers  

dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  LGA Model Code of Conduct as adapted 

2 Updated Guidance on Code of Conduct 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Background documents 

available 

 

 

1. Local Government 

Ethical Standards – a 

Review by the 

Committee on 

standards in Public 

Life 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-

standards-report 

2. Barrow Borough 

Council existing 

Member Code of 

Conduct 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/853

9.pdf 

 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8539.pdf
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/_resources/assets/attachment/full/0/8539.pdf


23.12.2020 Page 1 of 17  

Appendix 2 

 

Local Government Association Model  

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Councillor Code of Conduct 20210 

 
 

Joint statement 

The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s 

system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all 

adopt the behaviors and responsibilities associated with the role. Our conduct as an 

individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to 

be one that people aspire to. We also want individuals from a range of backgrounds and 

circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become councillors. 

As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver 

local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local 

area; taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and 

collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and 

demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging  behaviour which falls below expectations.  

Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being 

intimidated, abused, bullied or threatened by anyone, including the general public.  

This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and 

safeguard the public’s trust in local government. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 2 of 17  

Introduction 

The Local Government Association (LGA) has developed this Model Councillor Code of 

Conduct, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the sector, 

as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high 

standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole 

and/or with local amendments. 

All councils are required to have a local Councillor Code of Conduct. 

The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit- for- 

purpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in legislation. The 

LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the 

application of the Code and the National Association of Local  Councils (NALC) and the 

county associations of local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish 

councils. 

 
 

Definitions 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted 

member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in 

the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but 

who 

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or; 

b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint sub- 

committee of the authority; 

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that 

committee or sub-committee”. 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, district 

councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue 

authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined 

authorities and National Park authorities. 

 
 

Purpose of the Code of Conduct 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the 

behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out 

the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect 

you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local 

government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your 

specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of 

support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The 

fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of 

councillor and local government. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 3 of 17  

 

General principles of councillor conduct 

Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services, 

including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold 

the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles. 

Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed 

specifically for the role of councillor. 

In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions: 

 I act with integrity and honesty 

 I act lawfully 

 I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and 

 I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of 
councillor. 

In undertaking my role: 

 I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community 

 I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any 
person 

 I avoid conflicts of interest 

 I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and 

• I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local 

authority’s requirements and in the public interest. 

 

Application of the Code of Conduct 

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of 

the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to 

apply to you until you cease to be a councillor. 

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor 
which may  include when: 

 you misuse your position  as a councillor 

 Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with 

knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor; 

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including: 

Page 47

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2


23.12.2020 Page 4 of 17  

 at face-to-face meetings 

 at online or telephone meetings 

 in written communication 

 in verbal communication 

 in non-verbal communication 

 in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and 

comments. 

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times 

when acting as a councillor. 

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of 

Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any 

matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are 

encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring 

Officer. 

 
 

Standards of councillor conduct 

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required 

of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may 

be made against you, which may result in action being taken. 

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be 

followed. 

General Conduct 

1. Respect 

As a councillor: 

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect. 
 

1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner 

organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and 

respect the role they play. 

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 

Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you 

can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a 

robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or 

organisations to personal attack. 

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 5 of 17  

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and 

offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors. 

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the 

public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any 

conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the 

relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where 

action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority 

employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillor- 

officer protocol. 

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination 

As a councillor: 

2.1 I do not bully any person. 

 

2.2 I do not harass any person. 
 

2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any 

person. 

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as 

offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power 

through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be 

a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in 

virtual meetings, emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events 

and may not always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that  causes 

alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least 

two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and 

contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any 

reasonable person. 

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected 

characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's 

identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, 

marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 

sexual orientation. 

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central 

role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance 

and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality 

across public services. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 6 of 17  

3. Impartiality of officers of the council 

As a councillor: 

 
3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of 

anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority. 

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless  they 

are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would 

undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example, 

their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the  content of a report that they 

have written. However, you must not try and force them  to act differently, change their 

advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional 

integrity. 

4. Confidentiality and access to information 

As a councillor: 

4.1 I do not disclose information: 

a. given to me in confidence by anyone 

b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be 

aware, is of a confidential nature, unless 

i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

ii. I am required by law to do so; 

iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 

party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 

person; or 

iv. the disclosure is: 

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and 

2. made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the local authority; and 

3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its 

release. 

 

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a 

councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members, 

my employer or my business interests. 

 

4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by 

law. 

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed 

materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should 

work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions, 

documents and other information relating to or held  by the local authority must be treated in 

a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information 

relating to ongoing negotiations. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 7 of 17  

5. Disrepute 

As a councillor: 

5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute. 

As a Councillorcouncillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community 

and your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary 

members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse 

impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s 

confidence in your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s functions. For 

example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local 

authority into disrepute. 

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to 

constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by 

the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct. 

6. Use of position 

As a councillor: 

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or 

disadvantage of myself or anyone else. 

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, 

responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others. 

However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or 

others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly. 

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities 

As a councillor: 

7.1 I do not misuse council resources. 
 

7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising 

their use by others: 

a. act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and 

b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes. unless 

that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be 

conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of 

the office to which I have been elected or appointed. 

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in 

carrying out your duties as a councillor. 

Examples include: 

• office support 

• stationery 

• equipment such as phones, and computers 

• transport 

• access and use of local authority buildings and rooms. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 8 of 17  

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and 

are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with 

the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies 

regarding their use. 

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct 

As a Councillor: 

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority. 
 

8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or 

determination. 

 

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be 

involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings. 

 

8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have 

breached the Code of Conduct. 

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to 

have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local 

authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local 

authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring 

Officer. 

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority 

9. Interests 

As a councillor: 

9.1 I register and disclose my interests. 

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 

maintain a register of interests of members of the authority . 

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow 

councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The register 

is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register 

also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held 

accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding  whether or not you should 

disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think 

that a potential conflict might arise. It is also  important that the public know about any 

interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking 

part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This 

helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained. 

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set 

out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in 

doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer. 

Page 52

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 9 of 17  

10. Gifts and hospitality 

As a councillor: 

10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which 

could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable 

suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to 

acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons 

who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other 

significant advantage. 

 

10.2 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt. 

 

10.3 I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or 

hospitality with an estimated value of at least £50 that I have 

been offered but have refused to accept. 

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should 

exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably 

believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always 

be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a 

refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must 

ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality 

which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends 

and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and 

hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your 

Monitoring Officer  for guidance. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 10 of 17  

Appendices 

Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life 

The principles are: 

Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 

organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 

act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material  benefits for themselves, 

their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve  any interests and relationships. 

Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using 

the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 

must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 

Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful 

reasons for so doing. 

Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 

actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 

behaviour wherever it occurs. 

Page 54

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 11 of 17 
 

Appendix B Registering 

interests 

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you 
must register  with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out  
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register 
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2 
(Other Registerable Interests). 

 
“Disclosable pecuniary interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are 
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 

 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

 

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 

28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a 

registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the 

councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to 

violence or intimidation. 

 

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer 

with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring 

Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register. 

 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not 

participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 

room/meeting unless you have been granted a dispensation.  In addition, you may 

speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak and 

having spoken you must leave the room/meeting. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do 

not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. 

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate 

and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is 
being considered by you as an Cabinet Executive member in exercise of your 
executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not 
take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it 

 

Disclosure of Other Registrable Interests 

 
 

5.6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other 

Page 55

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 12 of 17 
 

Registrable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. If you 
have such an interest you must consider whether a reasonable member of the public, 
knowing all the facts, would think the interest such that it may influence the way you 
vote.  If the ordinary person would think that the interest may influence your vote then 
you should not participate in the matter.  In these circumstances you may speak on 
the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter. If it is a 
‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest 

 
 

 

 
Disclosure of Non- R e g i s t e r a b l e Interests 

 
 

6.7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial  interest 

or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a 

financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the 

interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed 

to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take  part in any discussion or vote 

on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you  do not have to disclose the nature of 

the interest. 

 

7.8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included 

under Other Registrable Interests set out in Table 2 

in those you need to disclose under Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you may participate 
in the meetingyou can remain in the meeting after disclosing your interest  the 
following test should be applied: 

 

8.9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects your financial interest or 
well-being so that a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it may affect your view of the wider public interest.: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority 

of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b.a. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe 

that it would affect your view of the wider public interest 

Yyou may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to 

speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on 

the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

dispensation. 

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
9.10. Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you 

have made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure 

Page 56

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 13 of 17 
 

that any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your 
interest. 

 

 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the 

Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the 
previous 12-month period for expenses 
incurred by him/her in  carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards 
his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


23.12.2020 Page 14 of 17 
 

 councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which 
such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of which such person  is a director* or 
a body that such person has a beneficial 
interest in the securities of*) and the council 
— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be 
provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ 
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the council; and 

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, 
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a 
beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a 
body where— 

(a) that body (to the councillor’s 
knowledge) has a place of business or 
land in the area of the council; and 

(b) either— 

(i) ) the total nominal value of the 
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were 

Page 58

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 15 of 17 
 

 
 

 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 

provident society. 

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 

2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building 

society. 

Table 2: Other Registerable Interests 
 

spouses/civil partners has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is 
likely to affect: 

 

a) Any unpaid directorships 
a)b) any body of which you are in general control or management and to 

which you are nominated or appointed by your authority 
 

b)c) any body 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or 

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

(iii) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.72 cm,  No bullets or

numbering

Page 59

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



23.12.2020 Page 16 of 17 
 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



October21 Page 1 
 

 

GUIDANCE ON CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
This document has been produced by the Cumbria Monitoring Officers to offer guidance on 
the Code of Conduct for Members. The code, amended from time to time to reflect current 
guidance, applies to all members and co-opted members of the Council. 
 
The Member code does not apply to the actions of the Council as a whole, or to the conduct 
of its officers and employees.   
 
Ultimately, it is the members’ responsibility to take specific advice from the Monitoring Officer 
where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of action. 
  
Code of Conduct 
 
The Code of Conduct (“the Code”) is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations 
that are placed on Members, but it is the responsibility of individual members to comply with 
the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply to them from 
time to time. 
 
The Code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to the code which 
define the standards that members should uphold.  A failure to act in accordance with these 
general principles may amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct. For example, by placing 
yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned, your conduct may 
be conduct which could “bringing the Council or your office as a member of the Council into 
disrepute”.  
 
When does the Code apply to you? 
 
The Code applies to you whenever you act in your official capacity as a Member or co-opted 
member of the Authority.  A co-opted member is a person who is not a member of the Council 
but who is either a member of any committee or sub-committee of the Council, or a member 
of, and represents the Council on any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council 
and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at that meeting of that 
committee or sub-committee. 
 
For the purposes of the Code, a “meeting” is a meeting of the Council, any of its committees, 
sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees.      
 
General Obligations under the Code  
 
You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a close associate, an employer or business 
carried on by you. 
 
For example, your behaviour would be improper if you sought to further your private interests 
through your position as a member. 
 
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside individuals 
or organisations that may influence you in the performance of your official duties. 
 
It would not be appropriate to accept favours, gifts or hospitality from someone that may, at a 
later date, require something from the Council that you are in a position to influence.  For 
example, you may be offered a discount by a business in the area which subsequently applies 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 2 
 

 

for a planning permission and/or a licence.  You may be on the relevant committee dealing 
with the application and, therefore, be in a difficult position. 
 
You must not disclose any information given to you as a Member in breach of any 
confidence. 
 
There may be circumstances where you are required to do so by law but you should seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about this.  
 
You must not disclose confidential information, or information which you believe to be of a 
confidential nature, except in any of the following circumstances: 
 

• You have the consent of the person authorised to give it. 
• You are required by law to do so. 
• The disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining professional 

advice (for example, your lawyer or other professional adviser) provided that person 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person. 

• The disclosure is in the public interest.  This is only justified in limited circumstances, 
when all of the following four requirements are met: 

1. the disclosure must be reasonable 
2. the disclosure must be in the public interest 
3. the disclosure must be made in good faith 
4. the disclosure must be made in compliance with any reasonable  requirements 

of your authority 
 

In relation to the disclosure of confidential information in the public interest, the four 
requirements to be met are outlined in more detail below. 
 
1. The first requirement, that the disclosure must be reasonable, requires you to consider 
matters such as: 
 

• Whether you believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation contained in 
it, is substantially true. If you do not believe this, the disclosure is unlikely to be 
reasonable. 

• Whether you make the disclosure for personal gain. If you are paid to disclose the 
information, the disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable. 

• The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may be reasonable to 
disclose information to the police or to an appropriate regulator. It is less likely to be 
reasonable for you to disclose the information to the world at large through the media. 

• The extent of the information disclosed. The inclusion of unnecessary detail, and in 
particular, private matters such as addresses or telephone numbers, is likely to render 
the disclosure unreasonable. 

• The seriousness of the matter. The more serious the matter disclosed, the more likely 
it is that the disclosure will be reasonable. 

• The timing of the disclosure. If the matter to which the disclosure relates has already 
occurred, and is unlikely to occur again, the disclosure may be less likely to be 
reasonable than if the matter is continuing, or is likely to recur. 

• Whether the disclosure involves your authority failing in a duty of confidence owed to 
another person. 

 
2. The second requirement, that the disclosure must be in the public interest, needs to involve 
one or more of the following matters or something of comparable seriousness, that has either 
happened in the past, is currently happening, or is likely to happen in the future: 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 3 
 

 

(a) A criminal offence is committed. 
(b) Your authority or some other person fails to comply with any legal obligation to which 
they are subject. 
(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs. 
(d) The health or safety of any individual is in danger. 
(e) The environment is likely to be damaged. 
(f) That information tending to show any matter falling within (a) to (e) is deliberately 
concealed. 

 
3. The third requirement, that the disclosure is made in good faith, will not be met if you act 
with an ulterior motive, for example, to achieve a party political advantage or to settle a score 
with a political opponent. 
 
4. The fourth requirement, that you comply with the reasonable requirements of your authority, 
means that before making the disclosure you must comply with your authority’s policies or 
protocols on matters such as whistle-blowing and confidential information. You must first raise 
your concerns through the appropriate channels set out in such policies or protocols. 
 
In summary, to decide whether the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest, you 
may need to conduct a balancing exercise weighing up the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality against any countervailing public interest favouring disclosure. This will require 
a careful focus on how confidential the information is, on any potentially harmful consequences 
of its disclosure, and on any factors which may justify its disclosure despite these potential 
consequences. 
 
In some situations, it is extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be justified in the public 
interest. These will include where the disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or where the 
information disclosed is protected by legal professional privilege. 
 
You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing the Council, or your office as a member of the Council, into disrepute. 
 
You must not bring your office or authority into disrepute whilst acting in your official capacity. 
 
As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary 
members of the public.  You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact 
on your office or your authority.  Dishonest and deceitful behaviour in your role as a member 
may bring your authority into disrepute, as may conduct in your private life which results in a 
criminal conviction, such as dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour. 
 
 
You must treat others with respect and promote equality by not discriminating 
unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their 
sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability.  You should respect the 
impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees. 
 
Respect  
You must treat others with respect. In politics, rival groupings are common, either in formal 
political parties or more informal alliances.  It is expected that each will campaign for their 
ideas, and they may also seek to discredit the politics and actions of their opponents.  Criticism 
of ideas and opinion is part of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to failing to 
treat someone with respect. 
 
Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be subject to 
unreasonable or excessive personal attacks.  This particularly applies to dealing with the 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 4 
 

 

public and officers.  Chairs of meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate and 
procedure rules or standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct. 
 
Whilst there may be unreasonable demands on members, members should, as far as 
possible, treat people courteously and with consideration.  Rude and offensive behaviour 
lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in its elected representatives. 
 
Equality 
 
You must not do anything which may cause your authority to breach any equality laws. You 
must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the prohibited forms of 
discrimination, or do anything which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties 
under equality laws.  Such conduct may cause your authority to breach the law, and you may 
find yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the code of 
conduct. 
 
Bullying 
 
You should not bully any person.  As an elected Member you are in a position of authority and 
power over Council employees and others. Bullying if offensive, intimidating, malicious or 
insulting behaviour involving the misuse of power that can make a person feel vulnerable, 
upset, humiliated, undermined or threatened.  Power does not always mean being in a position 
of authority, but can include both personal strength and the power to coerce through fear or 
intimidation. 
 
Bullying can take the form of physical, verbal and non-verbal conduct.  Bullying may include, 
by way of example: 
 

(a) Physical or psychological threats; 
(b) Overbearing and intimidating levels of supervision/instruction; 
(c) Inappropriate derogatory remarks about someone’s performance; 

 
Legitimate, reasonable and constructive criticism of a worker’s performance or behaviour, or 
reasonable instructions given to workers in the course of their employment, will not amount to 
bullying on their own. 
 
Harassment 
 
You should not harass any person. Harassment is any unwanted physical, verbal or non-
verbal conduct that has the purpose or effect of violating a person’s dignity or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for them.  A single 
incident can amount to harassment. 
 
It also includes treating someone less favourably because they have submitted or refused to 
submit to such behaviour in the past.  
 
Unlawful harassment may involve conduct of a sexual nature (sexual harassment), or it may 
be related to age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or civil partner status, pregnancy or 
maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or belief, sex or sexual 
orientation.  Harassment is unacceptable even if it does not fall within any of these categories. 
 
Harassment may include, for example: 

(a) Unwanted physical conduct or “horseplay”, including touching, pinching, pushing and 
grabbing; 

Page 64

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 5 
 

 

(b) Continued suggestions for social activity after it has been made clear that such 
suggestions are unwelcome; 

(c) Sending or displaying material that is pornographic or that some people may find 
offensive (including e-mails, text messages, video clips and images sent by mobile 
phones or posted on the internet); 

(d) Unwelcome sexual advances or suggestive behaviour (which the harasser may 
perceive as harmless); 

(e) Racist, sexist, homophobic or ageist jokes, or derogatory or stereotypical remarks 
about a particular ethnic or religious group or gender; 

(f) Outing or threating to out someone as gay or lesbian; 
(g) Offensive e-mails, text messages or social media content; or 
(h) Mocking, mimicking or belittling a person’s disability. 

 
A person may be harassed even if they were not the intended “target”.  For example, a person 
may be harassed by racist jokes about a different ethnic group if the jokes create an offensive 
environment. 
 
 
Impartiality and integrity of officers of the authority 
 
You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the Authority’s statutory officers and its 
other employees. 
 
You should not approach or pressure anyone who works for, or on behalf of the authority to 
carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way.  They must be neutral and should not be 
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality.  For example, you 
should not get officers to help you prepare party political material, or to help you with matters 
relating to your private business.   
 
Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons 
for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have written, you 
must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that 
report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity.  
 
When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making public 
appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits 
on merit. 
 
As an elected Member of the Council you are responsible for administering resources on 
behalf of the public of the area that you serve.  You should administer these resources fairly 
and in accordance with the law.  It is inappropriate for the Council’s resources or powers to be 
used in such a way that the authority and its Members be left open to accusations that in 
appropriate influence played a part, for example, “it’s not what you know, it’s who you know!” 
 
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully with 
whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 
 
This requirement is linked to carrying out all duties in a fair and transparent manner.  Members 
are able to be held to account for their actions and, this being the case, you must be open to 
cooperate with any legitimate scrutiny that is to be applied. 
 
You must be open as possible about your decisions and actions and the decisions and 
actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those decisions 
and actions. 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 6 
 

 

The law requires that Members give reasons for their decisions.  This is so that the public we 
serve are able to understand why we have taken a course of action and, if necessary, exercise 
any right of challenge that is open to them. 
 
You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary interests and any 
registrable interests, that relate to your public duties and must take steps to resolve 
any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest, including registering and 
declaring interest in a matter which conforms to the procedures within the code. 
 
The Code of Conduct contains a scheme for the registration of interests.  It exists to support 
openness and transparency; the public are able to see where you may have an interest.  
Secondly, the scheme of registration exists to protect individual Members against accusations 
of a conflict of interest, etc.  Lastly, the registration of disclosable pecuniary interests is 
required by law. 
 
You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 
authority, that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes (including 
party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority 
Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
Where your authority provides you with resources (for example telephone, computer and other 
IT facilities, transport or support from council employees), you must only use these resources 
or employees for carrying out your local authority business and any other activity which your 
authority has authorised you to use them for. 
 
You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources made by your 
authority. Failure to comply with the authority’s rules is likely to amount to a breach of the 
code. 
 
If you authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your authority’s 
resources, you must take care to ensure that this is allowed by the authority’s rules. 
 
You should never use council resources for purely political purposes, including designing and 
distributing party political material produced for publicity purposes. 
 
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your office. 
 
You have a duty to promote and support high standards of conduct and be consistent with the 
seven general principles attached to the Code.  
 

Page 66

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 7 
 

 

INTERESTS 
 
Register of interests 

Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. A 
copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website. 
 
You have two types of registrable interests   
 

a) A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and 
b) Interests other than pecuniary interests that the Council has decided should be 

registered 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
1. These are interests which must be notified to the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 

days beginning with the day on which you become a member or co-opted member of the 
authority in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Localism Act 2011. These 
are enforced by criminal sanction, and failure to declare is a criminal offence. 

 
2. You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow members 

know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The register is a 
document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and so allows others 
to know what interests you have, and whether they might give rise to a potential conflict 
of interest. 

 
3. The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether or not you should 

declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others 
think that a potential conflict might arise.  It is also important that the public know about 
any interest that might have to be declared by you or other members, so that decision 
making is seen by the public as open and honest.  This helps to ensure that public 
confidence in the integrity of local government is maintained.  

 
4. A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 

spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person 
with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) of the following descriptions: 

 
(a) Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 

or gain 

(b)  Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992).  

 
(c) Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which 

the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority under which 
goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and which has not 
been fully discharged.  

 
(d) Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 

authority.   

Page 67

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 8 
 

 

 
(e) Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 

relevant authority for a month or longer.   
 

(f) Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is the relevant 
authority; and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 
interest. 

 
(g) Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your 

knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
either the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or if that share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which 
the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.  

 
For the purposes of the foregoing “relevant authority” means the District Council, and “relevant 
period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which you notify the Monitoring 
Officer of your disclosable pecuniary interest.  
 
 
Notification of Other Interests 
 
5. In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests, you must, within 28 days of the Code 

being adopted by or applied to your authority; or your election or appointment to office 
(where that is later), notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your interests 
within the following categories, which the Council has decided must be included in the 
register of interests: 

. 
(a)  Details of  any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the District Council; 

(b) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and which –  

(i) exercises functions of a public nature,  

(ii)  is directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii)  is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing public 
opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade union); 

(c)  Details of any persons from who you have a received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts and hospitality worth £50 
or over that you receive personally in connection with your official duties).   

 

What is a “body exercising functions of a public nature”? 

6. Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such bodies, here are some criteria 
to consider when deciding whether or not a body meets that definition: 

 Does that body carry out a public service? 

 Is the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the function? 

 Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function 
delegated to it by a public authority? 

 Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some statutory power? 

Page 68

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 9 
 

 

 Can the body be judicially reviewed? 

Unless you answer “yes” to one of the above questions, it is unlikely that the body in your case 
is exercising functions of a public nature. 

Examples of bodies included in this definition: government agencies, other councils, public 
health bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms-length 
management organisations carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school 
governing bodies. 

 

If you need further information or specific advice, please contact your Monitoring Officer. 

 

What do things mean? 

 

Here are some definitions from the legislation that may help you.  Ask for advice if necessary: 

 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which 

the relevant 

person has a 

beneficial 

interest” 

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 

corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the 

securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an 

industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over 

land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant person 

(alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 

income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant 

authority” 

means the authority of which M is a member; 

Page 69

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I9AA4F73014C911E1A6718D7CED27531D


October21 Page 10 
 

 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M 

gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 

31(7), as the case may be, of the Act; 

“relevant 

person” 

means  

 

(i) M  

(ii) M's spouse or civil partner, 

(iii) a person with whom M is living as husband and wife, 

or 

(iv) a person with whom M is living as if they were civil 

partners, 

 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 

units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of 

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 

securities of any description, other than money deposited with 

a building society. 

 

 

Gifts and Hospitality 

7. You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it. 

8. You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I was not on the Council?  If you 
are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, we recommend that you register 
it or speak to the Monitoring Officer or your parish clerk where appropriate. 

9. You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a 
member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which you do not 
accept.  However, you should always register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived 
as something given to you because of your position or if your authority requires you to. 

 

 

  

Page 70

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E014C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=7&crumb-action=replace&docguid=ID78FE7E214C911E19E5AF8480E3EF42C
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&&context=17&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5FACA830E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB


October21 Page 11 
 

 

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality? 

10. The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should register it, 
as a matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of openness and 
accountability in public life. 

11. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth.  Also, an accumulation 
of small gifts you received from the same source over a short period that add up to £50 
or more should be registered.       

Changes to Interests 

12. You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any interest 
registered notify the Monitoring Officer of the  details of that new interest or change. 

Disclosure of Interests 

13. Where you have a registrable interest in any business of your authority, and where you 
are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of that interest, and you attend 
a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must disclose to that 
meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

Sensitive interests 

14. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to you, or a 
person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the Monitoring 
Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the register that are 
made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude details 
of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the details of which are withheld. 

 
What is sensitive information? 
15. It may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific research or the 

Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create serious risk of violence or 
intimidation against you or someone who lives with you. 

 
16. You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your concerns 

regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information; including why it is likely to create a 
serious risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjected to violence or 
intimidation.  You do not need to include this information in your register of interests, if 
your Monitoring Officer agrees but you need to disclose at meetings the fact that you have 
a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concern.  

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
17. If you are present at a meeting of the Council, Executive or any committee, sub-

committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the 
meeting: 

 You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 

 You  may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 

 If  the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the  meeting. 

 If  the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, you 
must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 

 

Dispensations 
 
19. The Monitoring Officer or Audit and Governance Committee may grant you a 

dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 12 
 

 

a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These circumstances are 
where: 

 
1. It is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from 

participating in any particular business would be so great a proportion of the body 

transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business.   

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on 

the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the likely 

outcome of any vote relating to the business.   

3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Executive would be able to 

participate on this matter. 

4. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of persons 

living in the authority’s area 

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

 
Offences 
 
20. It is a criminal offence to 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 
days of election 

 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the 
register 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 

 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days of the interest. 

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in notifying 
the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in disclosing such 
interest to a meeting 

 

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 
 
 
Bias/Predetermination 
 
Although not part of the Code, members need to be clear that they are not biased going into 
the decision making process. 
 
If you have a personal interest in a matter as a result of the matter affecting the well-being or 
financial position of yourself, member of your family or close association more than it would 
affect the majority of other people in the ward or electoral divisions affected by the decision, 
or in the authority’s areas or constituency then there may be potential for 
bias/predetermination. 
 
The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements.  The first seeks accuracy in 
public decision-making and the second seeks the absence of prejudice or partiality on the part 
of you as the decision-maker. An accurate decision is more likely to be achieved by a decision-

Page 72

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 13 
 

 

maker who is in fact impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and who puts 
aside any personal prejudices.  

The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making process. Even though 
the decision-maker may in fact be scrupulously impartial, the appearance of bias can itself call 
into question the legitimacy of the decision-making process. In general, the rule against bias 
looks to the appearance or risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that justice 
should not only be done, but should manifestly and undoubtedly be seen to be done.  

To varying degrees, these “requirements” might be seen to provide the rationales behind what 
are generally taken to be three separate rules against bias: “automatic” (or “presumed”) bias, 
“actual” bias and “appearance” bias. 

The rationale behind “automatic” or “presumed” bias appears to be that in certain situations 
(such as if you have a pecuniary or proprietary interest in the outcome of the proceedings) 
then it must be presumed that you are incapable of impartiality. Since a motive for bias is 
thought to be so obvious in such cases, the decisions are not allowed to stand even though 
no investigation is made into whether the decision-maker was biased in fact.  In these 
circumstances you should not participate in a decision. 

The Localism Act 2011 has enshrined the rules relating to pre-disposition and 
predetermination into statute.  In essence you are not taken to have had, or appeared to have 
had, a closed mind when making a decision just because you have previously done anything 
that directly or in-directly indicated what view you may take in relation to a matter and that 
matter was relevant to the decision.   

So, you are entitled to have a pre-disposition one way or another as long as you have not pre-
determined the outcome.  You are able to express an opinion providing that you come to the 
relevant meeting with an open mind, able to take account of all of the evidence and make your 
decision on the day. 
 
What does “affecting well-being” or “financial position” mean? 
 
The term “well-being” can be described as a condition of contentment and happiness.  
Anything that could affect your quality of life, either positively or negatively, is likely to affect 
your well-being. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your family or close personal associates positively and 
negatively.  So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose from a matter under 
consideration, a personal interest would need to be declared in both situations. 
 
Who is a member of your family or close association? 
 
A member of your family should be given wide meaning.  It includes a partner (someone you 
are married to, your civil partner, or someone you live with in a similar capacity), a parent, 
parent-in-law, a son or daughter, a stepson, or stepdaughter, the child of a partner, a brother 
or sister of yourself or your partner, a grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt, a nephew 
or niece and the partners of any of these people. 
 
A person with whom you have a close association is someone that you are in either regular or 
irregular contact with over a period of time who is more than an acquaintance.  It is someone 
a reasonable member of the public might think you would be prepared to favour or 
disadvantage when discussing a matter that affects them.  It may be a friend, a colleague, a 
business associate or someone whom you know through general social contacts. 
 
What if I am not aware of my personal interest? 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



October21 Page 14 
 

 

Clearly you cannot be expected to declare something of which you are unaware.  However 
you should not ignore the existence of interests which, from the point of view of a reasonable 
and objective observer, you should have been aware. If you become aware, or should have 
realised, that you have an interest during consideration of the item, you should immediately 
declare this and take the appropriate action. 
 
When must I leave the room where the meeting is held? 
 
You must leave immediately before any debate starts. 
 
Non participation in case of pecuniary interest 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 
Subject to the following paragraph below if you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any 
matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting, then you should declare that 
interest to the meeting and should leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes place. 
 
If a dispensation has been granted to you in relation to a disclosable pecuniary interest then, 
subject to the terms of the dispensation, you may be relieved from the above restrictions but 
will still be required to declare the interest to the meeting. 
 
Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the Council, you may 
attend a Meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend 
the Meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.  Once any 
such representations etc have been made, the Member should leave the room whilst any 
discussion or vote takes place. 
 
This would mean that as under current arrangements, Members will leave the room during an 
item in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 

 
In the interests of transparency it is good practice for you to make the nature of a disclosable 
interest known when such a matter arises at a meeting.  You should identify the nature of the 
interest which you have in any matter so that is known and understood by all and is a matter 
of public record.  If a declaration is not made, other than through the register, it would not 
necessarily be apparent to anyone who is present at the meeting why a particular Member is 
not participating or voting in any matter. 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan
	Enc. 1 for Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan

	9 Appointment of External Auditors
	Enc. 1 for Appointment of External Auditors
	Enc. 2 for Appointment of External Auditors

	10 Code of Conduct and Guidance Revision
	Enc. 1 for Code of Conduct arrangements and Guidance Review
	Enc. 2 for Code of Conduct arrangements and Guidance Review


